MINUTES

FORT MYERS BEACH

Local Planning Agency Workshop
Town Hall – Council Chambers

2523 Estero Boulevard

Fort Myers Beach, FL 33931

Tuesday, May 26, 2009
I. CALL TO ORDER-LPA WORKSHOP 
Workshop meeting, with Town staff, to discuss the CIP process, was called to order at 2:00 PM by Chairperson Weimer.  Five members present:
Dennis Weimer

Rochelle Kay

Alan Mandel


Bill Van Duzer



Joanne Shamp


Evie Barnes- resigned
Staff present:  LPA Attorney Ann Dalton; Community Development Director Dr. Frank Shockey, Jack Green and Evelyn Wicks.  
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. WORKSHOP:  Capital Improvement Planning
A.  Financial Issues
Dr. Shockey addressed the workshop and said that he broke the CIP discussion into 3 basic components:  where is the money coming from, what is the LPA’s required involvement in CIP matters, and what improvement projects are needed or desired and in what order.  Dr. Shockey turned the floor over to Evelyn Wicks.

Evelyn presented a list to the members of some resources for funding.  She said that the Town is now pretty much “pay as you go” for projects because of charter provisions preventing long-term debt.

Mr. Van Duzer felt that it is not the duty of the LPA to determine where the funding will come from but rather only what projects need to be addressed and is conflicted in his feelings.

Ms. Shamp appreciates the update from staff to advise them about changes in state law, financial situations, etc.

Mr. Weimer agreed that the LPA duties are to review the CIP proposal and consider whether it is in compliance with the Comp Plan.  Dr. Shockey agreed but noted that the LPA has a larger role in the Comp Planning process that can affect what kinds of improvements are later proposed. Much discussion ensued about what participation is required and how much by the LPA, as well as where the funding comes from.  Ms. Wicks clarified that in the case of emergencies, the Town functions from the reserves they have.  She said this is one of the issues with the present “pay as you go” plan, as it doesn’t allow the Town to have a smooth CIP wherein the Town knows what is planned for when, and what is actually being done when.  
Mr. Weimer asked Mr. Green how many miles of streets the Town has.  Mr. Green said that it is about twenty-seven miles of street, not including the part of Estero Blvd that is the County’s responsibility.  Mr. Weimer also asked the life expectancy of a street.  Mr. Green replied that there are so many different factors that it is difficult to estimate that in general.  However, he estimated that the “in town” streets aren’t too bad but the biggest problems are streets with storm drains, especially manhole covers.  He said that the Town did not have an assessment tool for gauging how soon a street needs repairs, and that is why they’ve developed one this year to be able to estimate and plan more efficiently.
Mr. Weimer asked if there are other areas than streets, such as Town properties, that truly must be looked at seriously very soon.  Mr. Green stated that water utility is a big issue but it is a separate fund and today is for general fund type activities.  He said that the pool is a perfect item.  In the past, the contractor was responsible for determining the maintenance needs of the pool, and repairs, etc.  He said it was not an efficient system because the contractor preferred to do the minimum, or less, and pocket the remainder of the contract money as profit.  Now the Town manages the repairs.  He gave several examples of the repairs needed.  He also said that the public works department lives within its reserves but it is very difficult to plan a five year CIP when they cannot budget beyond three years.  Mr. Green was asked for his idea for any way to change that, and he could only say to change the charter, which is extremely difficult and potentially unpopular.  
Ms. Kay referred to the Municipal Revenue Sharing Program and pointed out that there are funds available from certain transportation related taxes and wondered if the Town could benefit from these funds.  Mr. Green gave some examples of how the Town already uses these restricted funds, for clarification, and some discussion ensued.  

Mr. Weimer gave a scenario wherein Bay Oaks is turned over to the Town and there was funding in reserve for that, and he asked whether that reserve could be built into a budgeting process.  Ms. Wicks explained further how this works, including sinking funds, and the feasibility of the process.  She said that the ad valorem tax is a good vehicle to get these projects done as well and not be in debt.  Mr. Mandel pointed out that the charter mandates that the Town cannot take on debt and he wondered if there are any state laws which may say the Town can.  
Public Comment Opened.  

Ms. Shamp asked if the Town has any franchise fees and Ms. Wicks stated that they do not for electric services.  She said it is a potential source and may be on the table during budgeting this year.  Ms. Shamp also asked about impact fees.  Mr. Eric Smythe, a resident, asked what other projects this funding would be used for.  Mr. Green stated that this was not yet determined but CIP projects so far include the North Estero project, storm water, road and water improvements, which come to about $5.5 million dollars.  He added a few more and explained for the public.  Mr. Smythe asked if these projects would provide any jobs to beach residents and Mr. Green responded that contractors are not under beach government control.  The Town’s bid process allows for preference of local bidders where a company bidding is located in the Town, but there is not requirement that a company employee Town residents.  A few members had questions regarding to possible errors in the materials provided in the packets and whether or not there are rules as to where and how funds can be invested.
B. Required LPA Involvement

Dr. Shockey advised that the LPA has an integral role in comprehensive planning matters.  He referred to the information packets given to members and pointed out other specific duties involving annually evaluating the capital improvements proposed in the Town’s budget for consistency with the Comp Plan.  He added that in addition, the LPA makes recommendations regarding amendments to the Comp Plan and works on the evaluation and appraisal of the Comp Plan on a 7 year basis.  Finally, Dr. Shockey noted a clause at the end of the section of the Land Development Code providing the LPA’s duties which indicates that Town Council may ask the LPA to perform “any other duties” that the Town Council can lawfully assign to the LPA. 
Mr. Weimer asked the members to think for a few minutes about what they would like to see prioritized for LPA plans for the future.  Mr. Van Duzer was asked how he would spend the money for the Town.  He said that his number one project would be storm water management.  Ms. Kay concurred.  Ms. Shamp was torn between storm water and water utility issues.  Mr. Mandel felt the best way for him to decide is to see what staff would like to see done and then decide.  Mr. Weimer also agreed with storm water management as being a priority.  
Mr. Van Duzer commented that he didn’t think that water utility improvement project would be a capital improvement project because the water utility is a self-supporting entity.  Mr. Weimer asked Ms. Wicks for her opinion and she said that the Town needs to evaluate what assets they have and how to nurture those to plan for projects.  In addition, Mr. Green said that storm water management is very important to the island, as is road improvements; however, he stated that the Town doesn’t own anything.  There is no flag planted anywhere, except for Town Hall, for instance, and the building is rented.  He said that there is nowhere else to go and the island is already built up, so the residents who are there cannot foot the bill for everything.  He also pointed out that there is no extra space for staff or storage in the Town anyplace that the Town owns…because the Town does not own a town hall facility.  There was much discussion about the size of the Town’s rented office building and the lack of storage or operational space anywhere in the Town for public works or any other department.  
Mr. Janke added that there is no branding of the Town of Fort Myers Beach.  He said that the Town is built out and so the LPA must be concerned with maintaining and sustaining the amenities that are in place. Mr. Weimer asked what he might see as something coming forward that may be of significance.  Mr. Janke said that the acquisition of Bay Oaks, for example, may be a good thing to help find some storage for public works without interfering with the recreational components.  He said that rebuilding of the North Estero project is the biggest thing the Town has ever undertaken and, when done, it’ll be a reminder that the Town has grown up.  Discussion ensued in response to an item Ms. Shamp pointed out regarding a beach “walk.” 
Ms. Kay asked about funding money and dedicating it to specific items.  She asked how that gets done and Mr. Janke advised that the Council usually does that so suggesting this to the Council is where to start.  

Mr. Van Duzer commented part of the financial situation is due to inept Councils in the past that kept lowering the millage rate as property values rose, and now the budget is suffering as those property values fall.  

Ms. Shamp thanked everyone for their participation.  She praised Mr. Green for his work in the recent water crisis and she is impressed by the road surveys and the work being done for these plans.  In general, she is appreciative of all of the collective work being done by staff and how well these projects are progressing.
Public Comment; none further.  Public Comment Closed.
Mr. Weimer thanked Town staff for participating in the workshop and for their input.

IV. ADJOURNMENT
Adjourned at 3:45 PM.

Next meeting June 9, 2009 at 10:30 AM.
Adopted ______________________ With/Without changes.  Motion by ___________________



(DATE)

Vote:______________________  
________________________________________________






Dennis Weimer, LPA Chair

· End of document
LPA-May 26, 2009

Page 1 of 4

